
Agenda

Economy and Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Wednesday, 9 May 2018, 10.00 am
County Hall, Worcester

All County Councillors are invited to attend and participate

Worcestershire County Council

This document can be provided in alternative formats such as Large Print, an audio recording or 
Braille; it can also be emailed as a Microsoft Word attachment. Please contact Democratic 

Services on telephone number 01905 844965 or by emailing 
democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk

Find out more online:
www.worcestershire.gov.uk

mailto:democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk


DISCLOSING INTERESTS

There are now 2 types of interests:
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests'

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)?

 Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain 
 Sponsorship by a 3rd party of your member or election expenses
 Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 

you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares
 Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer)
 Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 

share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire.

      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you

WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI?
 Register it within 28 days and 
 Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting 

- you must not participate and you must withdraw.
      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'?
 No need to register them but
 You must declare them at a particular meeting where:

 You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have 
a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion.

WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY?
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest.

DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI?
Not normally. You must withdraw only if it:

 affects your pecuniary interests OR 
relates to a planning or regulatory matter

 AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

DON'T FORGET
 If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 

and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient   
 Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda 

- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little
 Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 

referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years

  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases.

Simon Mallinson Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012       WCC/SPM summary/f



Agenda produced and published by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, County Hall, Spetchley 
Road, Worcester WR5 2NP. To obtain further information or hard copies of this agenda, please contact 
Emma James or Jo Weston 01905 844965, email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 

All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website 
websitehttp://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees

Date of Issue: Monday, 30 April 2018

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel
Wednesday, 9 May 2018, 10.00 am, County Hall, Worcester

Membership
Councillors: 
Mr A A J Adams (Chairman), Mr P Denham (Vice Chairman), Mr G R Brookes, Mr B Clayton, 
Mr M E Jenkins, Mr A D Kent, Mr J A D O'Donnell, Ms C M Stalker and Ms R Vale

Agenda

Item No Subject Page No

1 Apologies and Welcome

2 Declarations of Interest and of any Party Whip

3 Public Participation
Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Head of Legal 
and Democratic Services in writing or by email indicating the nature and 
content of their proposed participation no later than 9.00am on the working 
day before the meeting (in this case Tuesday 8 May 2018).  Enquiries can 
be made through the telephone number/email address below.

4 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting
Previously circulated.

5 Community Transport Operations in Worcestershire 1 - 4

6 Highways IT - Update 5 - 6

7 Co-ordination of Streetworks 7 - 8

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees


This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 5 
 

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 9 May 2018

ECONOMY AND ENVIRONMENT
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
9 May 2018

COMMUNITY TRANSPORT OPERATIONS IN 
WORCESTERSHIRE 

Summary

1. The Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel will receive an
update on Community Transport in Worcestershire.

Background

2. There are 18 Community Transport (CT) schemes in the County which provide 
transport using volunteers driving their own cars, dial-a-ride minibuses, community 
buses and fully-accessible Multi-Purpose Vehicles (MPVs) for those who cannot 
travel by other means – either because no appropriate services are available or due 
to their mobility limitations.

3. The Worcestershire CT Consortium exists to provide a forum for not-for-profit 
operators and it currently has 14 members.  It works to an annual Development Plan 
which is approved by the Local Authority and includes such actions as the sharing of 
administrative procedures, vehicles, volunteers and best practise, working with 
commercial, local authority, Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) and Health 
partners to provide a more joined-up, efficient and effective service and undertaking 
various promotional campaigns with relevant publicity material.  

4. CT schemes throughout the County have been extending their operations and 
taking on new services to cater for a wider range of passengers across 
Worcestershire. Approximately 500 volunteers are involved in delivering around 
165,000 journeys by CT each year.

5. Information about all the County's Community Transport operators can be found 
at www.communitytravel.org.uk  

Strategic Grant for Community Transport

6. A Council grant has been approved for another two years from April 2018 
enabling Worcestershire County Council (WCC) to ensure that CT Consortium 
members work with the Authority in providing a range of transport services.  It also 
supports schemes to develop and build their operations. Worcestershire CT is 
involved in transport reviews and delivers local bus, Adult Social Care, Learning 
Disability and education contracts.  In all circumstances where a local bus is 
considered for withdrawal, CT will be involved in looking at alternatives and 
providing a solution.

Page 1

http://www.communitytravel.org.uk/


Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 9 May 2018

Total Transport

7. The Council was awarded funding from the Department for Transport's (DfT) 
'Total Transport Fund' to initiate ways of working with partners to deliver more 
integrated transport planning and operations. The Authority arranged meetings with 
numerous Health Providers and CT schemes to devise two pilot initiatives.  These 
commenced in September 2017 and are still running – until the end of June 2018: 
'Transport to Health' provides residents of Wyre Forest and north Malvern Hills 
Districts with a central point of contact and transport to healthcare appointments.  

8. These are provided by three partner CT schemes working together; 
'Connections to Health' covers Redditch, Wychavon and Worcester City, with five 
partner CT schemes providing journeys for passengers needing to travel to the 
Alexandra Hospital in Redditch and Worcestershire Royal Hospital in Worcester.  
Both initiatives are gathering information about patients' transport issues as well as 
providing eligible passengers with Community Transport.  

9. An interim summary report has been produced by the Council and this will be the 
subject of a press release in early May.  It will also be the subject of a meeting that 
month of relevant Health representatives.  The recommendations include the funding 
of a single contact point for transport to healthcare with signposting to appropriate 
travel opportunities and also a new leaflet giving all the necessary information for 
patients and visitors who need to get to appointments and hospitals.

Pending Changes in Operating Legislation

10. WCC and the CT Sector are participating in the DfT's Consultation on the use of 
Permits for Road Passenger Transport in the UK.  This will have a crucial impact on 
CT Countrywide as the DfT seeks to clarify the relevant amendments to the 
Transport Act 1880 relating to not-for-profit transport schemes operating under 
Section 19 and Section 22 Permits.  The Consultation closes on 4 May 2018 and a 
summary proposal document will be due out later this year. As this is likely to affect 
the sort of services CT can provide and their ability to bid for contracts, it will be 
necessary to work with the sector to adapt and implement changes to avoid the 
(realistic) possibility of some closing down. 

Trends and Opportunities

11. The WCTC keeps a close eye on trends in and opportunities for CT in order to be 
responsive and flexible to meet changing needs. The Consortium is initiating 
research into the changing needs of passengers who use its members' services in 
Worcestershire and also implementing appropriate training and practices to adapt to 
these.

Some Information about Individual Schemes

12. Wyre Forest Dial-a-Ride (WFDaR) has just taken on two new local bus and one 
Adult Social Care contracts resulting from the recent round of reviews by WCC.  The 
organisation, which runs 4 minibuses, will continue to run its existing two registered 
bus routes – the 7A and 12 in Kidderminster – as well as its Adult Social Care 
contract to the Odell Centre.  WFDaR has worked closely with the Authority to deliver 
these and a Total Transport Pilot Project, 'Transport to Health' (see below, and is a 

Page 2



Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 9 May 2018

very active participant in CT development.  Their Manager is also the current Chair of 
the CT Consortium.  One of WFDaR's happy customers recently said: "I would like to 
say how pleased we have been with the service you provide.  The last year would 
have been quite difficult without you.  Will you pass on our thanks to the drivers for 
their friendliness and help."
13. Tenbury Transport Trust (TTT) operate two minibuses, both of which are 
leased from the Authority via the 'Vehicles for CT' leasing scheme which helps 
support the not-for-profit operators to have access to suitable vehicles to develop 
their services.  The Trust has recently negotiated with the Omiston Academy in 
Tenbury to provide a transport contract to get pupils to the school from various 
locations in north-west Worcestershire.  The school is very pleased with how this is 
going and is in discussion about a second service.  TTT also run an extensive 
voluntary car scheme – with, perhaps, the longest distances to travel, particularly in 
getting their customers to healthcare.
 
14. Droitwich Community Transport - a new Community Bus - CB5 - has just 
started following the withdrawal of a registered route at the end of last year.  Several 
residents and local Councillors expressed concern that the Cockshute Hill area of the 
town would be disadvantaged as a result, so discussions started with Droitwich Spa 
Rural CVS which runs the local CT scheme, resulting in the CB5 which commenced 
in March. It is a pre-bookable service which will respond to passengers' individual 
needs - picking them up and dropping them off at convenient pre-agreed locations in 
their fully accessible minibus.

15. Droitwich CVS also run the second Total Transport Pilot Project, 'Connections to 
Health'

16. Community Action Malvern and District (CAMD) - this organisation, which 
covers the whole of the south Malvern Hills District, has successfully bid for the 
Council contract to continue to provide transport in the form of two Community Bus 
services, CB1 and CB2,  for residents of the very rural area to the south of Malvern 
where there are no other bus services.  It also has worked closely with Malvern Dial-
a-Ride to devise and deliver the CB3 Community Bus route which caters for 
passengers who lost the 360 bus operated by First.  Both CT schemes work together 
to provide this much needed link between Malvern and Upton and keep their 
communities informed.  Local Councillors have been involved in this and Malvern 
Hills District Council has helped produce publicity. Community Action also operate a 
large voluntary car scheme.

17. Community Transport Wyre Forest (CTWF) runs three accessible MPVs and a 
car scheme throughout the Wyre Forest district. In March, Royal Voluntary Service 
ceased their community car scheme, Rural Rides, in Bromsgrove and Redditch and 
CTWF stepped in to take over this significant operation, signing-up existing drivers 
and ensuring there was a seamless transition for Rural Rides several hundred 
customers.

18. In addition Redditch Dial-a-Ride has undertaken a review of its service which 
includes recommendations to work alongside an enhanced voluntary car scheme for 
single-passenger journeys – maintaining its minibuses for numerous passengers 
travelling together. CTWF will work with them to deliver this.  The Total Transport 
project, 'Connections to Health', will also be involved.

Page 3



Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 9 May 2018

19. Worcester Wheels has recently moved premises to a location from which it can 
park and operate its three minibuses and two MPVs.  A new Business Manager has 
recently been appointed.  They operate four WCC contracts and a busy car and DaR 
service throughout the city and neighbouring villages.

20. Broadway Nomads now offers its Community Bus to 7 local organisations 
whose main aim is to combat loneliness and rural isolation.  Transport can play a key 
role in this.

Legal, Financial and HR Implications

21. The proposed clarification of the operation under Section 19 and 22 permits by 
the DfT will have significant implications for the CT sector – in Worcestershire and 
nationally.  It is likely to affect any minibus operation by not-for-profit operators and 
will include how and whether CT can bid for contracts.  CT plays a significant role in 
providing transport in rural areas and for those who may be isolated due to lack of 
suitable transport services: it assists WCC in delivering its statutory responsibility to 
provide 'socially necessary' transport.

Privacy Impact Assessment

22.None.

Equality and Diversity Implications

23. Community Transport delivers a significant number of journeys to Worcestershire 
residents, particularly to those who have mobility limitations and have no access to 
public transport services.  The Sector, therefore, is a prime provider of transport to 
vulnerable groups – helping to combat isolation and loneliness, maintain 
independence and enabling access to essential services. 

Purpose of the Meeting

24. Following the discussion, the Scrutiny Panel is asked to:
 consider and comment on the information provided
 determine whether any further information or scrutiny is required at this stage
 agree any comments to highlight to the Cabinet Member/s.

Contact Points
County Council Contact Points
County Council: 01905 763763
Worcestershire Hub: 01905 765765

If you have any questions about Community Transport please contact Madeleine 
Sumner, County Council Community Transport Officer on 01905 846838  
Email: msumner@worcestershire.gov.uk 

Specific Contact Points for this Report
Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Page 4

mailto:msumner@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk


AGENDA ITEM 6 
 

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 9 May 2018

ECONOMY AND ENVIRONMENT
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
9 May 2018

HIGHWAYS IT – UPDATE 

Summary

1. The Chairman has requested a verbal update from the Council's Highways and 
Public Rights of Way Operations Manager in regard to Geographical Information 
Systems (GIS) for Drainage and also the development of a Highways App.

Purpose of the Meeting

2. Following the discussion, the Scrutiny Panel is asked to agree whether any 
further information or scrutiny is required.

Contact Points
County Council Contact Points
County Council: 01905 763763
Worcestershire Hub: 01905 765765

Specific Contact Points for this report
Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Page 5

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 7 
 

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 9 May 2018

ECONOMY AND ENVIRONMENT
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
9 May 2018

CO-ORDINATION OF STREETWORKS 

Summary

1. The Panel will receive an overview of the organisation of streetworks with regards 
co-ordination of works on the public highway.

2. The Panel is keen to understand the role of the County Council in co-ordinating 
works on the public highway, and what can be done to try and minimise disruption. 

3. The County Council's Network Control Manager has been invited to the meeting 
as well as the Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Highways.

Background

4. Worcestershire County Council (WCC) operates a Permit Scheme to co-ordinate 
works on the public highway. All utility companies have a right to place their 
equipment in or on the public highway and to maintain that asset. Whilst WCC 
cannot prevent access, it does charge a fee on traffic sensitive routes to cover co-
ordination of this work. 

5. An electronic noticing system allows utility companies to advise the Council in 
advance of their works. The notice period is defined as 3 months, 10 days or 3 days, 
depending upon the duration of the works, thus allowing most time to co-ordinate the 
major works which cause the most disruption. 

6. A report on the first year's annual report on the Permit Scheme will be presented 
to Cabinet in the Summer.  

 
Co-ordination 

7. With regard to co-ordinating works, joint working is encouraged through permit fee 
reduction to minimise congestion and repetitive works along the same section of 
highway. However, it is not always possible to pursue joint working for the following 
reasons:

 Insufficient working space for two programmes of work to be carried out at the 
same time

 Emergency works unknown at the time of scheduled works
 Requests to work at the same location not being received at the same time to 

enable co-ordination
 Nature of the works (for example, it is not good practice to mix water works and 

electrical works)

Page 7



Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 9 May 2018

Maintenance

7. When  maintenance works are carried out on the public highway, WCC can and 
do protect the surface for up to 5 years from utility works under section 58 of the 
Highways Act. 

8. The Council provides advance notice to all works promotors to enable them to 
schedule any works they have in the area  ahead of the maintenance works. If other 
works promotors wish to carry our works during the protected period they have to 
resurface significant areas rather than a patch just covering their works to protect the 
durability of the maintenance works. 

9. Information on streetworks can be found  on the Council's website at: 
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20007/travel_and_roads/688/highways_licenc
es_and_permits/1

Purpose of the Meeting

10. Following the information provided and discussion of streetworks, the Scrutiny
Panel is asked to:

 consider and comment on the information provided
 determine whether any further information or scrutiny is required at this stage
 agree any comments to highlight to the Cabinet Member.

Contact Points
County Council Contact Points
County Council: 01905 763763
Worcestershire Hub: 01905 765765

Sally Everest, Network Control Manager
Email: severest@worcestershire.gov.uk

Specific Contact Points for this Report
Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Page 8

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20007/travel_and_roads/688/highways_licences_and_permits/1
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20007/travel_and_roads/688/highways_licences_and_permits/1
mailto:severest@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	5 Community Transport Operations in Worcestershire
	6 Highways IT - Update
	7 Co-ordination of Streetworks

